1993

Gregory Oar v. Dale Parks and Sterling Press, Inc. : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION OF APPELLANT COURT

This case originated in the Third District Court, Salt Lake County, Utah as civil case number 90-0904365PR.

It was originally assigned to the Honorable James S. Sawaya and subsequently, upon Judge Sawaya's retirement, to the Honorable Tyrone Medley.

JURISDICTION: The Utah Supreme Court has jurisdiction in this matter pursuant to Utah Constitution, Article VIII, Section 3(a), Utah Code Ann. Section 76-2-2(3)(j) (1978), and Utah Rules of Appeals, 3(a) and 4(a) Utah Code Ann. 1953, as amended.

On October 7, 1993 it was submitted to the Superior Court clerk and was assigned to the Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

The Honorable James S. Sawaya, judge of the Third District court, it is asserted made an error in this case. The error alleged is stated below:

In a hearing on May 11, 1992 Judge Sawaya ruled that attorney Allen Sims should be allowed to continue as attorney for the defendant even though he had represented the plaintiff in several matters just a few years earlier. These legal matters included preparation of many of the very documents which were presented in this case thereby constituting an extremely flagrant conflict of interest.

At the same hearing a motion was heard wherein Plaintiff asked for an accounting of the rental income and expenses from the property and a check for his share of the net rental income. Allen Sims stated that there had been no accounting made and there were no funds to disburse. Allen Sims knew full well that there was a joint checking account from which the expenses of owning the property were paid since he himself, for some reason unknown to the Plaintiff, was issued a check from the account. In other words Allen Sims lied to Judge Sawaya causing Plaintiff to lose the property.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case is on appeal from the Third District Court's ruling, made at a hearing on May 11, 1992, that Allen Sims was to

remain the attorney of record in this case even though the weight of evidence indicated that Sims represented Plaintiff/Appellant Gregory H. Oar on numerous occasions and was not eligible to represent Parks in this case.

Allen Sims was a member of the firm of Biele, Haslam & Hatch when Gregory Oar, as president of Sterling Press Inc., engaged them to do corporate matters along with some personal litigation for himself.

Rule 1.9 of the *Utah Rules of Professional Conduct* sets forth the circumstances under which a lawyer may not represent a party whose claims are adverse to those of a former client. That provision is as follows:

A lawyer who has formerly represented a client in a matter shall not thereafter; a) represent another person in the same or a substantially factually related matter in which that person's interest are materially adverse to the interest of the former client unless the former client consents after consultation; or b) use information relating to the representation to the disadvantage of the former client except as Rule 1.6 would permit with respect to a client or when the information has become generally know.

There is ample evidence that attorney Allen Sims is well aware that he was not and is not eligible to represent Dale S. Parks in any action involving Gregory Oar. When Plaintiff /Appellant Gregory H. Oar filed suit in *Oar vs. Parks* involving a matter where Parks defrauded Oar, Allen Sims apparently advised Parks to seek other counsel. Parks then hired Michael N. Zundel

of Jardine, Linebaugh, Brown & Dunn to handle that litigation.

In yet another case, which just recently came to light, and which is still before the court, *Oar vs. Parks and deMik*, Parks hired yet another attorney to defend him, L. Benson Mabey. If Sims really thought that he was eligible to represent Parks he certainly would have taken care of these matters in addition to this current matter before the court.

It has become standard practice for law firms to check all new client's names against a list, which is usually computerized, of their clients so that they are alerted when a possible conflict arises. This shows the importance that attorneys generally assign to adhering to Rule 1.9. Sims adhered to none of this. Sims arrogantly states, in his reply to the motion to disqualify, that he represented the corporation, Sterling Press Inc., but neither one of the principals, as if the corporation was someone else.

In yet another case (*Oar vs. Parks*), which has not yet been filed, involving Parks defrauding Oar of yet another jointly owned property Parks will undoubtedly hire yet another law firm to try to defend himself. It's inconceivable that Sims will risk further sanctions by taking on this future case.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

IMPROPERLY REPRESENTING FORMER PARTNER

A) For some years, beginning in the early 1970's, Plaintiff/Appellant Gregory H. Oar and Defendant/Respondent Dale S. Parks were partners in a commercial printing business known as Sterling Press Inc. Together we purchased a building at 2630 South 300 East, South Salt Lake City, Utah. In the early 1980's they decided to divide the assets of the business and go their separate ways. One major asset which they agreed to keep was this building in which Oar retained a 42.87% interest and Parks retained the remaining 57.13%. Over time Oar had some financial needs to keep his new venture afloat. He borrowed \$20,000 for 90 days from Barry Birkenshaw for which he gave a quit claim deed on the property as collateral. Before the note came due Plaintiff's business venture failed and he was unable to repay the loan. Mr. Birkenshaw recorded the quit claim deed and Plaintiff lost his interest in the property. Subsequently, Birkenshaw contacted Plaintiff's mother, Florence Bowers, and transferred his interest in the property back to Mrs. Bowers, at a discount, with the intention that Mrs. Bowers would eventually transfer the interest back to her son, Gregory Oar.

B) Later, Oar wished to withdraw some funds from the building in order to engage in other activities. Through his mother, Oar offered his portion of the building for sale subject to his partner's lease agreement, however, when he found a buyer, Parks frustrated the sale by forbidding the prospective buyer from even entering the building to inspect it.

C) On August 2, 1990, Florence Bowers, filed suit in Third District Court to increase the rent paid on her portion of the commercial building which was jointly owned by Defendant-Respondent Dale S. Parks, or alternately to partition the building either by sale or a physical partition. During 1992, Florence Bowers became ill and finding business decisions very difficult along with the extreme anxiety over the lawsuit she transferred the lawsuit over the building to her son Plaintiff/Appellant Gregory H. Oar. See stipulation (appendix #2).

D) On or about the 5th of June 1992, Plaintiff /Appellant Oar filed a motion to disqualify Defendant's attorney Allen Sims based on the premise that since Allen Sims had been Oar's attorney when he was president of Sterling Press he was no longer eligible to represent another party against Oar.

E) Oar moved the court to disqualify Sims as defendant's attorney. A hearing was held. The court ruled against Plaintiff Oar.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

PERJURY

A) On May 12, 1992 the court heard Plaintiff's motion seeking release of funds held in the Sterling Press building rental account.

B) The motion specifically requested a full accounting of the rental income and a release of the funds in order to

forestall foreclosure scheduled for the following morning. Allen Sims knowingly lied to Judge Sawaya when he stated that there was no accounting and there were no funds to disburse. Proof of this became available to Plaintiff on December 10, 1992 when someone at Sterling Press made a rental payment to the new owner of the property and included an accounting which included several previous years. Allen Sims was fully aware of this special checking account since he himself had received funds from the account with Gregory Oar's forged signature.

C) As a result of Allen Sims lying to Judge Sawaya that no funds were available in the property account, when in fact there were sufficient funds to redeem the property, and the fact that plaintiff had insufficient funds to redeem the property, plaintiff lost the property at the foreclosure sale on May 13, 1992.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Attorney Allen Sims was hired and did extensive legal work for the Plaintiff Gregory H. Oar. Rule 1.9 of the *Utah Rules of Professional Conduct* clearly states that this prohibits Sims from representing Dale S. Parks in any matter involving Gregory Oar. Therefore, Allen Sims should have been dismissed as the Defendants' attorney back in July of 1992.

In addition, at a hearing on May 11, 1992, Allen Sims lied to Judge Sawaya that he had no knowledge that an accounting was being kept and that there were no funds deposited in a joint

property rental account, when in fact he himself had been issued a check from the account with Gregory Oar's forged signature.

ARGUMENT

Because Judge Sawaya's ruling was contrary to the great weight of evidence, the trial court erred in denying plaintiff's motion to disqualify counsel for conflict of interest.

A. AN ATTORNEY/CLIENT RELATIONSHIP EXISTED BETWEEN OAR AND SIMS

Rule 1.9 of the Utah Rules of Professional Conduct presupposes the existence of a prior attorney/client relationship between the challenged attorney and the party who is disputing the attorney's representation of the adversarial party in the current litigation. Thus, the first question to be answered in a motion to disqualify is whether there was a prior attorney/client relationship. *Otake v. Klien* 791 P2d 713, 717 (Hawaii 1990).

Sims initially performed services for Oar in 1981 when Sterling Press was liquidated. At that time, Sims negotiated the terms of the liquidation agreement, and drafted the documents necessary to effectuate the liquidation. Where a small, closely held corporation is involved, and in the absence of a clear understanding with the corporate owners that the attorney represents solely the corporation and not their individual interest, it is improper for the attorney thereafter to represent a third party whose interest are adverse to those of the

stockholders and which arise out of a transaction which the attorney handled for the corporation. *In Re Brownstin*, 602 P.2d 655, 657 (Or. App.1979). In actuality, the attorney in such a situation represents the corporate owners in their individual capacities as well as the corporation unless other arrangements are clearly made. *Id.* In the matter at hand, Sterling Press had only two shareholders. When Sims negotiated and drafted the liquidation agreement, he was representing not only the corporation, but also Oar and Parks in their individual capacities.

Sims was also representing Oar when he negotiated and drafted the lease for the property, and when he negotiated and drafted the 1985 agreement. In *Carlson v. Langdon*, 751 P.2d 344 (Wyo. 1988), the Supreme Court of Wyoming interpreted Rule 1.9 of the *Wyoming Rules of Professional Conduct*. That Rule is identical to Rule 1.9 of the *Utah Rules of Professional Conduct*. In that case, the court held that when an attorney does nothing to indicate or dispel a party's belief that the attorney is representing his interest, then an attorney/client relationship exists between the attorney and that party. *Id.* at 347. When Sims drafted the lease and the 1985 agreement, Oar was under the impression that Sims was representing his interests. Sims did nothing to dispel Oar's belief that he was representing him in the negotiation and drafting of these documents. As such, an

attorney/client relationship existed between Sims and Oar with regard to those agreements as well.

The fact that Oar may not have paid Sims for all of the work which he performed would not control the question of whether an attorney/client relationship existed between Sims and Oar with regard to those agreements as well.

The fact that Oar may not have paid Sims for all of the work which he performed should not control the question of whether an attorney/client relationship does not require the payment of a fee or formal retainer but may be implied from the conduct of the parties. *Matter of McGlothlen*, 663 P.2d 1330, 1334 (Wash. 1983). Payment may be an important consideration, but it is not essential to the existence of an attorney/client relationship, especially for purposes of apply Rule 1.9. *Carlson v. Langdon*, *supra*.

Because Oar was one of only two stockholders in Sterling Press, and because Sims represented Sterling Press, Sims also represented Oar with regard to the liquidation agreement. In addition, an attorney/client relationship also existed between Sims and Oar with regard to the lease and the 1985 agreement because Sims did nothing to dispel Oar's notion that he was representing his interest in those matters. An attorney/client relationship is thus presumed to have existed between Sims and Oar.

**B. THE MATTERS INVOLVED IN THIS ACTION ARE SUBSTANTIALLY
FACTUALLY RELATED TO THE MATTERS IN WHICH SIMS REPRESENTED OAR**

Once it has been established that an attorney/client relationship existed between the challenged lawyer and the party who is disputing the attorney's representation of an adversarial party in the current litigation, the court must determine whether the matters are substantially factually related. The court must determine whether in the factual context the matters involving the two clients are related in some substantial way. *Carlson v. Langdon, supra*. If the two matters have common facts, the attorney in a position to receive confidential information which possibly could be used to the detriment of the former client in a later proceeding. *Id.*

In the matter at hand, Sims' prior representation of Oar is substantially factually related to the matters being litigated in this action. In proving the allegations made in his Complaint, Oar must refer to the circumstances surrounding the negotiation and signing of the liquidation agreement, the lease, and the 1985 agreement. Sims represented Oar with regard to the drafting and the signing of all of those documents. In his representation, Sims became privy to confidential information which he could use to Oar's detriment in this matter. In fact, Sims has already used provisions of the 1985 agreement to support his argument opposing Oar's Motion for Release of funds.

Oar's recovery in this matter is predicated upon proving the facts related to the liquidation agreement, the lease, and the 1985 agreement. Sims representations are substantially factually related, and Rule 1.9 prohibits Sims from representing parties with adverse interest to Oar in this matter.

Regarding Plaintiff's Charge of Perjury against Allen Sims the record speaks for itself.

CONCLUSION

Under the *Code of Professional Ethics* Rule 1.9 it is clear that Allen Sims should have been disqualified as counsel for Dale S. Parks and Sterling Press Inc.

In addition, Allen Sims knowingly lied to Judge Sawaya when he stated that there was no accounting and there were no funds in the property rental account. The funds that existed could have prevented Appellant from losing his interest in the property in foreclosure.