1993

Gregory Oar, and American Pension Services, Inc., a Utah corporation v. Dale s. Parks and Sterling Press, Inc. : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to §78-2a-3(2)(k); §78-2-2(3)(j), (4).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

Appellant has appealed the trial court's ruling on two interlocutory motions.

1. Did the trial court err in denying Plaintiff's Motion to Disqualify?

The trial court's ruling on the motion should not be set aside unless there is no set of facts contained in the record to sustain the motion or unless the ruling to disqualify is clearly erroneous. Despain v. Despain, 855 P.2d 254 (Utah App. 1993).

2. Should the trial court's denial of Plaintiff's Motion for Release of Funds be reversed? The standard of review for an interlocutory motion is the clearly erroneous standard. Mower v. McCarthy, 245 P.2d 224 (Utah 1952).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the case.

This was an action for partition of real property filed by one of two co-tenants against the other. The original plaintiff also sought relief alleging unlawful detainer, unjust enrichment and breach of fiduciary duty.

Course of the Proceedings.

In July, 1990, Plaintiff, Florence Bowers, a tenant in common holding a 42.87% interest in real property (the "Partition Property") filed a Complaint against Dale S. Parks, a tenant in common owning a 57.13% interest in the partition property, Sterling Press, Inc., sole tenant of all of the Partition Property occupying the premises under written lease, West One Bank, a first lien mortgage holder of the Partition Property, Richard G. Newton, whose IRA trust held a trust deed against Bowers interest in the Partition Property, and Bruce M. Giffen, who held a trust deed against the Bowers interest in the Partition Property. See Complaint with attachments. (R 2-12; Add. No. 1).

Tenant in Common, Dale S. Parks, and tenant, Sterling Press, Inc., filed their Answer to Plaintiff's Complaint. See Answer and Counterclaim with attachments, (R 17-26; Add No. 2). Said Defendants denied Plaintiff's allegations as to unjust enrichment, unlawful detainer, and breach of fiduciary duty. Defendants counterclaimed against Plaintiff for sums expended for maintenance and upkeep of the premises to which they were entitled to reimbursement and also requested partition and/or sale of the Partition Property.

On September 13, 1991, J. Spencer Ball, attorney for Plaintiff, withdrew as counsel. (R 36) On April 17, 1992, Michael L. Chidester of Mooney & Associates, appeared as attorney for

Plaintiff, Florence Bowers. (R 39-40)

On March 24, 1992, Plaintiff, Florence Bowers, moved to substitute Gregory Oar as Plaintiff, based on assignment of her cause of action or claims in the case. (R 41-42)

On May 4, 1992, Plaintiff, Gregory Oar, filed a Motion for Release of Funds specifically asking for the release of rental payments claimed to be held in "escrow". (R 51-53; Add No. 3) Said motion alleged that an underlying trust deed note given by Florence Bowers was in default and that foreclosure of Bowers' interest had been scheduled for May 12, 1992. Plaintiff Oar filed the motion for release of rental payments alleged to be held in escrow for the purpose of curing the default on the trust deed note on the property held in Florence Bowers' name. The court held a hearing for argument on the Motion for Release of Funds on May 11, 1992. (R 54-57) Plaintiff failed to established the existence of any "escrow account." Beyond that, Plaintiff failed to establish any right to immediate payment of disputed amounts if any account, escrow or otherwise, in fact, existed. Judge Sawaya denied the motion by minute entry dated May 11, 1992. (R 58)

On May 15, 1992, American Pension Services, Inc., the trustee for the IRA account of Richard G. Newton, filed to intervene as a party plaintiff. Said motion was made by attorney Michael Chidester, the attorney for Gregory Oar, and before that Florence Bowers, whose interest in the Partition Property was

foreclosed by Mr. Newton's trust. See Motion to Intervene and Memorandum in Support of Intervention. (R 59-64)

The trial court granted the motion of American Pension Services, Inc. to intervene as a party plaintiff. See Minute Entry dated July 8, 1992. (R 109)

On June 3, 1992, Plaintiff Gregory Oar filed a Motion to Disqualify through his attorney, Michael Chidester, to disqualify the attorney for Dale S. Parks and Sterling Press, Inc. on the grounds that said attorney had previously represented Gregory Oar in a substantially factually related matter. See Motion to Disqualify and Memorandum with attachments. (R 74-94; Add No. 5) Defendants, Dale S. Parks and Sterling Press, Inc., responded to the Motion to Disqualify on June 16, 1992, filing a response and the Affidavit of Dale S. Parks. (R 97-102; Add No. 6) Mr. Parks' affidavit disputed the allegations contained in Mr. Oar's affidavit asserting Attorney Sims represented Sterling Press, Inc. in 1981.

On July 8, 1992, the trial court denied Plaintiff's Motion to Disqualify and granted the Motion to Intervene by American Pension Services, Inc. (R 109) Michael Chidester of Mooney & Associates continued to represent Gregory Oar as the assignee of any claim of Florence Bowers that remained after foreclosure of her percent interest in the Partition Property and the intervening Plaintiff, American Pension Services, Inc., as the new owner of the Florence Bowers' interest.

On December 14, 1992, Stephen Cook, an attorney with Mooney & Associates, withdrew as attorney for Gregory Oar. (R 157-158) Gregory Oar filed a pro se appearance. (R 159-160)

On February 25, 1993, Gregory Oar, pro se, filed a Motion to Disqualify Counsel, supported by an affidavit and supporting memorandum. (R 165-186)

The trial court per Judge Tyrone E. Medley, denied the renewed motion to disqualify counsel. (R 193)

On May 4, 1993, the trial court entered its Scheduling Order and Trial Notice, setting trial for July 29, 1993 for two days. Said Scheduling Order was mailed to Gregory Oar, Allen Sims, and Stephen R. Cook. Exhibit and witness lists were ordered to be exchanged by June 3, 1993, with a final pre-trial settlement conference to be held July 22, 1993. (R 210-211)

On May 7, 1993, attorney for Plaintiff, American Pension Services, Inc. and attorney for Defendants, Dale S. Parks and Sterling Press, Inc., entered into a Stipulation agreeing to jointly list the Partition Property for sale, naming individual agents for each tenant in common and setting forth other matters. (R 212-213)

On June 3, 1993, Defendants, Dale S. Parks and Sterling Press, Inc., filed their list of witnesses and exhibits to be used at trial. (R 214-223)

Plaintiff American Pension Services, Inc. filed its

Witness and Exhibit List identifying no exhibits and listing one witness, Richard G. Newton. (R 224-225)

Plaintiff Gregory Oar filed no witness or exhibit list.

On July 26, 1993, Defendants filed their Trial Brief with attachments and Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. (R 244-285) Neither Mr. Oar or American Pension Services filed any trial brief in this matter.

Disposition in the Trial Court.

On July 29, 1993, the parties appeared before the Honorable Tyrone E. Medley for trial of the matter. American Pension Services, Inc. appeared through counsel, Stephen R. Cook. Gregory Oar appeared pro se. Dale S. Parks and Sterling Press, Inc. appeared in person and through counsel, Allen Sims. Plaintiff American Pension Services, Inc. and Defendants entered into an oral stipulation resolving all issues between them. Plaintiff Gregory Oar was given the opportunity to identify and present any claims which he believed he had through the assignment by Florence Bowers in the case and to present any evidence or documents to support such claims but failed to do so. See Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, Finding paragraph 29. (R 305-313; Add No. 6)

Plaintiff Gregory Oar was given a fair and ample opportunity to engage in discovery during the pendency of this action, and was given a full and fair opportunity to present all of his claims, witnesses and exhibits on the date appointed for trial.

See Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, Finding 27 and 28.

Plaintiff Gregory Oar failed to present evidence or witness testimony and failed to sustain his burden of proof. The trial court entered a judgment of dismissal with prejudice on any and all of his claims. See Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, Conclusion No. 5.

On August 26, 1993, Gregory Oar, acting pro se, filed a Notice of Appeal. (R 324-325) The Notice of Appeal does not contest any Finding of Fact or Conclusion of Law or the Judgment, but appeals the trial court's ruling on two interlocutory motions.

On September 9, 1993, Gregory Oar certified to the appellate court that a transcript of any of the proceedings at the trial level were not required.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Appellant's Brief does not contain a Statement of Issues that complies with Rule 24(a)(5) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure. The brief makes numerous factual allegations under the caption Statement of Issues with no references whatsoever to the record. Appellant's Statement of the Case and Statement of Facts also makes numerous factual allegations with not one reference to the record. Defendants/Appellees have requested that Appellant's Brief be stricken for failure to comply with Rule 24(a)(7), (e), and (k), Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure. Appellees' motion was made on the basis that the Appellant failed to cite to the record

to support any of his allegations, alleges irrelevant and immaterial matter, and makes scandalous allegations unsupported by the record.

As to Plaintiff's appeal of the trial court's denial of two interlocutory motions, Plaintiff has failed to show any legal basis for reversal and has failed to show how or why reversal would make any difference in the judgment below since none of the trial court's findings or its judgment has been challenged on appeal. Plaintiff also has not mustered any evidence and has not shown that the challenged rulings are clearly erroneous.

ARGUMENT

Appellant's appeal should be dismissed for failure to properly comply with the Rules of Appellate Procedure for his failure to contest any of the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and the judgment.

The appellate court should assume the correctness of the trial court's judgment with respect to its motions due to the Appellant's lack of compliance with Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure. Christensen v. Munns, 812 P.2d 69, 73 (Utah App. 1991).

When a person has been afforded trial, the presumption arises that the judgment relative to issues in that case are sound, and cannot be properly disturbed unless the one attacking it meets a burden of showing error which is substantial and prejudicial in the sense that there is a reasonable likelihood that the result

would have been different in absence of such error. Revas v. Pacific Finance Co., 397 P.2d 990 (Utah 1964); Hall v. Blackham, 417 P.2d 664 (Utah 1966).

In order to challenge the trial court's determination, Appellant must marshall the evidence which supports the finding or conclusion and demonstrate that despite this evidence that it is clearly erroneous. This Appellant has not done. Anton v. Thomas, 806 P.2d 744, 747 (Utah App. 1991).

Denial Of Plaintiff's Motion To Disqualify Should Not Be Reversed.

In 1981, Sterling Press, Inc. hired Allen Sims to undertake a liquidation of the corporation, remove real estate from the corporation, and liquidate other assets to a successor corporation owned solely by Dale S. Parks. At the end of the liquidation process in 1981, Gregory Oar was no longer a shareholder of or involved with Sterling Press, Inc. Mr. Oar and Mr. Parks became owners of three properties as tenants in common, one of which was leased to Sterling Press, Inc. and subject of the partition action. See Affidavit of Dale S. Parks, paragraphs 3, 4, 5 (R 101; Add No. 6) Mr. Parks stated in his affidavit that after the liquidation Mr. Oar ceased all contact with Mr. Parks, and it fell upon Sterling Press, Inc. to undertake maintenance and improvements that were the responsibility of the tenants in common under the provisions of the lease between Sterling Press and the

tenants in common. In 1985, Sterling Press, Inc. and Dale S. Parks requested that Mr. Sims represent them to collect items owing from Mr. Oar and resolve payments between them. Mr. Sims represented Sterling Press, Inc. and Dale S. Parks. Said representation was clear to the parties at that time. See Affidavit of Dale S. Parks, paragraph 8. (R 101; Add No. 6) Mr. Oar's own affidavit states that Allen Sims was hired by Sterling Press, Inc. to prepare the liquidation documents.

In Defendants' Response to Motion to Disqualify Counsel (R 97-99; Add No. 6), Attorney Allen Sims indicated that he undertook to liquidate certain assets to the individual shareholders but he represented the corporation, that his billings went to Sterling Press, Inc., that all payments came from Sterling Press, Inc., and that there had never been an attorney-client relationship between Mr. Oar and Allen Sims. Eleven years after the liquidation in which Mr. Oar ceased to be a shareholder in Sterling Press, Inc., where he never had title to the Partition Property for any time period relevant to Plaintiff's claim (merely obtaining an assignment of the claim of Florence Bowers), and where his contact with the parties was nil, Mr. Oar moves for disqualification. Mr. Oar's presence in this case was to pursue the claims of Florence Bowers, if she had any, a short time before and after foreclosure of her interest in the Partition Property.

Appellant has not shown that denial of Plaintiff's Motion

to Disqualify was clearly erroneous. The trial court's ruling was well within the court's discretion, based upon the affidavits of the parties and the surrounding facts.

In reviewing an Interlocutory order where issues of fact are involved and there are no findings of fact, the court does not review the facts but assumes that the trier of facts found them in accord with its decision and will affirm the decision if from the evidence it would be reasonable to find facts to support it. Mower v. McCarthy, 245 P.2d 224 (Utah 1952).

Appellant's burden on appeal is to cite to the appellate court all of the evidence in the record that would support the determination reached and then demonstrate why, even when viewed in the light most favorable to the court below, it is insufficient to support the decision or finding under attack. Harker v. Condominums Forest Glen, Inc., 740 P.2d 1361, 1362 (Utah App. 1987); Reed v. Mutual of Omaha Ins. Co., 776 P.2d 896 (Utah 1989); Saunders v. Sharp, 793 P.2d 927, 931 (Utah App. 1990).

By an assignment of claims by Florence Bowers, Mr. Oar substituted as a party plaintiff and then raised the issue of conflict of interest. With contested facts, given the eleven years that passed between Mr. Oar's involvement as a shareholder of Sterling Press and his appearance as a Plaintiff and given the fact that any claims he had as Plaintiff were the claims of Florence Bowers during the period she owned the Partition Property as a co-

tenant, the trial court denied Mr. Oar's motion. It was well within the discretion of the trial court to deny the Motion to Disqualify Counsel, there are facts in the record to sustain such denial and Appellant has not shown such denial of said motion was clearly erroneous.

There Is No Basis For The Court Of Appeals To Review The Trial Court's Denial Of Plaintiff's Motion For Release Of Funds.

The other issue raised by Appellant is the denial by the trial court of his Motion for Release of Funds. Most kindly characterized, Appellant alleges attorney misconduct. Appellant repeatedly mischaracterizes said motion, claiming that it was for an accounting and that it was for the turnover of funds. In fact, said motion never requested an accounting and the release of funds was related to an alleged "escrow" account held by Defendants. The trial court denied the motion. The Appellant failed to establish the existence of any escrow account held by Defendants. Appellant has failed to relate any of his outrageous and unfounded allegations to any part of the record that would in any way sustain his position. This portion of the appeal of Gregory Oar should be dismissed as frivolous as it lacks any support in the record and the characterization by Appellant is an outrageous attack on Defendants' counsel. Further, attorney fees should be awarded for the inclusion of burdensome, irrelevant, immaterial and particularly scandalous matters in the appeal and Brief of Mr. Oar,

pursuant to Rule 24(k), Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

Appellant, as relief, seeks damages or a new trial. The claim for damages on appeal is clearly frivolous. The other claim for relief for a new trial is unsupported by any argument or any citation of the record or the law that a new trial is justified, or would make any difference where no findings of fact or conclusions of law on the judgment is appealed or contested. Appellant does not identify any claim Florence Bowers had after foreclosure to be adjudicated. Appellant has done little more than reargue the memorandum of counsel at the trial level and has not forwarded any argument as to why the trial court should be reversed in its ruling.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, Appellees respectfully request the following relief on appeal;

1. Appellant's appeal should be dismissed for its substantial failure to comply with the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure, Rule 24(a)(5)(7)(e) and (k). Appellant failed to identify or try any substantive issues at trial by his failure to present any evidence, he has not appealed any of those issues, and he has not challenged any findings of fact or conclusions of law or the trial court's judgment.